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January 16, 2025 

TO: RAILS BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

   FROM: Monica Harris, Executive Director 

Sharon Swanson, Finance Director 

   SUBJECT: LIMRiCC Intergovernmental Agreement Changes 

The Library Insurance Management and Risk Control Combination (LIMRiCC), the insurance pool that 
RAILS participates in to provide staff health, dental, vision, and life insurance, has recently amended the 
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) for participation in both the health and unemployment 
compensation claims processing programs that they administer. The IGA had not been amended since 
2015, which meant that it needed several updates to properly reflect changes in administration that 
have happened over the last ten years as well as the change that happened several years ago to move 
the health insurance to a self-insured plan which has now been renamed the Health Insurance Plan 
(HIP).  

The resolutions have been signed by RAILS and the other members of LIMRiCC in November 2023, and 
RAILS is now preparing to sign the amended IGA. LIMRiCC received the 2/3 vote needed from the 
membership for these resolutions to go into effect as of November 2023. We wanted to make the board 
aware of the amendments since the cost of these benefits is a significant piece of the RAILS budget and 
because it has been so long since the last amendment. 

The administrative changes include: 

• Minor clerical updates including address changes
• Elimination of references to the joint self-insurance program that is no longer offered by

LIMRiCC and the Executive Director of LIMRiCC since this service is now outsourced to an
independent contractor

The substantive changes include: 

• Addition of a late fee for the unemployment compensation claims processing program
• New member requirements
• New requirements for providing documentation to LIMRiCC regarding employee eligibility
• Increased time periods for payment of monthly health insurance premiums prior to incurring

late fees
• A formal refund policy for invoiced health insurance adjustments
• Updating claims processing periods for terminating members from 90 days to 12 months
• Updating run-out periods, notification periods, and penalties for terminating members
• Updating mandatory member meetings requirements
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